
SPECIAL
Agenda

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting
Municipal Building, 625 52nd Street – Room 204

Wednesday, May 1, 2024
5:00 pm

Alderperson Jan Michalski, Chairperson Commissioner Royanne Moon
Commissioner Chris Allen, Vice-Chairperson Commissioner Sue O’Day
Commissioner Peter Johnson Commissioner William Siel

Call to Order
Roll Call
Citizens Comments

Approval of the Minutes from the meeting held February 29, 2024

1. Certificate of Appropriateness for Exterior Alteration at 6402 Third Avenue (Emory Grant House).
(District 3) PUBLIC HEARING

Commissioner Comments

IF YOU ARE DISABLED AND NEED ASSISTANCE, PLEASE CALL 653-4030 BY NOON
OF THIS MEETING DATE TO MAKE ARRANGEMENTS FOR REASONABLE ON-SITE ACCOMMODATIONS.

City of Kenosha, 625 52nd Street, Kenosha Wisconsin 53140 | T: 262-653-4030 citydevelopment@kenosha.org
KENOSHA.ORG

mailto:cityclerk@kenosha.org


DR
AF
T

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
Minutes

February 29, 2024

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Alderperson Jan Michalski, Chris Allen, Peter Johnson, Royanne Moon, Sue O'Day,
William Siel

MEMBERS EXCUSED:

STAFF PRESENT: Mike Maki, Community Development Specialist, Rachel
Gasper, Planner

The meeting was called to order at 5:00pm by Alderperson Michalski. Roll call was taken
and a quorum was present.

Citizens Comments – None

A motion was made by Mr. Siel and seconded by Mr. Allen to approve the minutes of the
December 6, 2023 meeting. The motion passed. (Ayes 6, Noes 0)

1. Election of Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson

A motion was made by Mr. Allen, seconded by Mr. Johnson to elect Alderperson Michalski as
Chairperson. The motion passed. (Ayes 5, Noes 0, Abstain 1 – Alderperson Michalski)

A motion was made by Mr. Siel, second by Ms. O’Day to reelect Chris Allen as Vice-Chairperson.
The motion passed. (Ayes 5, Noes 0, Abstain 1 - Mr. Allen)

2. Certificate of Appropriateness at 625 57th Street. (Kenosha National Bank)
(District 2) PUBLIC HEARING

Public hearing open

Karen Amelio, Mountain, Ltd., Algonquin, IL, stated that Verizon would like to install antennas
at 625 57th Street to increase the overall capacity for cellular coverage in the area. She
handed out updated plans and pictures to show the equipment cabinets being pushed back
another 6 feet so they will be less visible then previously shown. She went over the materials
that will be used in disguising the antennas.

Mr. Johnson asked when did Staff receive the new plans?

Ms. Amelio stated they received them in the last couple of weeks.

Mr. Maki stated that the new revisions on the plans were just handed out to Staff tonight as
well.

Public hearing closed

Ms. Gasper went over the Staff report. Staff recommendation is to approve the Certificate of
Appropriateness subject to an increased setback from the roofline.

Historic Preservation February 29, 2024



DR
AF
T

Alderperson Michalski asked is the setback increase from what you originally negotiated or to
what you have negotiated?

Ms. Gasper stated this is their first time seeing the plans with the new set back. This was for
the original plans with the equipment right against the wall. She feels with the 6 foot this
needs to be discussed further and make sure it is far enough back from what was originally
decided.

Mr. Maki stated that the equipment platform is being pushed back 6 feet which Staff
approves. Staff still has a concern with the antennas being right behind the parapet walls.
Staff would be open to the option of the newly presented 3M Film material. He asked Ms.
Amelio if there are any real life examples of the 3M product on taller buildings being used to
physically take a look at?

Ms. Amelio stated she does not have anything with her at the moment. She went over the
space limitations, if pushed pack more the need to increase the height of the antennas and
materials to be used to disguise them.

Mr. Maki stated to the Commission that Staff would be open to this but would like to see
actual evidence what the antennas would look like with the 3M materials used. Staff is
requesting photos from the applicant on an existing site where these materials are currently
being used.

Ms. Amelio asked that the photos she provided are not sufficient?

Mr. Maki stated the photos are just mock ups.

Ms. Amelio stated that the photos are not mock ups and are actual photos of real installations.

Mr. Maki stated the photos are zoomed in to the top of the roof. He is looking for photos at street
level looking at the building with the antennas on top. He asked if she could provide these photos
from 3M?

Ms. Amelio stated she feels if you are looking further away it would be less obvious then a close
up. She will go back and do more research to see what she can find.

Mr. Maki stated that it seems like a fantastic product but hearing about it to actually seeing it in
full view from street level he cannot say Staff would be okay with this. He recommends to the
commission that this can be approved subject to additional information being provided to Staff for
further review. Staff could then authorize that.

Mr. Allen stated he would also be interested in the life span of the product. What would it look
like in 20 years?

Ms. Amelio replied that it maintains its integrity.

Mr. Allen asked if there was a statement that 3M could provide with that information or photos
from installation to a 15 year span?

Ms. Amelio stated she will get that information from 3M.

Alderperson Michalski asked if the coating is paint or tape?

Historic Preservation February 29, 2024



DR
AF
T

Ms. Amelio replied that it is a film.

Alderperson Michalski asked if it was brushed on or applied?

Ms. Amelio stated it is applied like contact paper and went over the installation.

Alderperson Michalski went over a previous antenna that was on the building.

Mr. Siel asked how long has the product been on the market?

Ms. Amelio stated that 3M has been making this product since the early 1990’s.

Mr. Siel stated that there must be some live examples between Milwaukee and Chicago for you
to provide to Staff. He feels this is a reasonable request for the fact everyone is seeing this for
the first time tonight.

Ms. Amelio stated she understood.

Mr. Siel asked with the closer placement to the parapet facade how much shorter would these
appliances need to be?

Ms. Amelio stated it is a 1 to 3 ratio and gave an explanation.

Alderperson Michalski asked the applicant if she was okay with the 6 foot setback?

Ms. Amelio asked with the equipment platform?

Alderperson Michalski replied yes.

Ms. Amelio replied yes they are totally fine with moving the whole equipment base platform
backwards. She went over other equipment surrounding the area.

Ms. Moon asked if the existing antennas on the existing penthouse will stay?

Ms. Amelio replied yes, those are by a different carrier.

Mr. Siel asked Staff now that there is a shorter implement does that hide it more than extending
the height of it now that we are thinking about hiding it with the film?

Mr. Maki clarified that the antenna panels are still going to be behind the parapet wall. What is
being shifted 6 feet is the equipment cabinet platform further on the building roof.

Ms. Amelio stated that if we move the antennas further back there will have to be more input
onto the existing roof structure and went over the process.

Mr. Siel asked does the building owner have a preference on how this plays out?

Ms. Amelio replied no, as long as it is structurally stable they are not concerned.

Alderperson Michalski recommends moving forward with the Certificate of Appropriateness
pending Staff receiving examples. He asked the antennas are being mounted to the roof itself
and the electrical equipment is separate and setback from the antennas?

Historic Preservation February 29, 2024



DR
AF
T

Ms. Amelio replied the antennas will not be mounted to the box and went over where they will be
installed and how.

Mr. Johnson stated he would like to make sure the actual applications received are from
Wisconsin and they have been up for quite a few years and obtain the weather conditions.

Motion was made by Mr. Siel, seconded by Ms. O’Day to approve the Certificate of
Appropriateness subject to Staff approval once new photos are received and reviewed per
staff recommendation. The motion passed. (Ayes 6, Noes 0)

Mr. Maki stated this will also require a review of a Conditional Use Permit with the City Plan
Commission.

Alderperson Michalski explained the next steps to the applicant.

Ms. Amelio confirmed she understood.

Commissioner's Comments -

Mr. Johnson spoke.

A motion was made by Mr. Siel and seconded by Mr. Allen to adjourn. The motion passed.
(Ayes 6, Noes 0)

The meeting adjourned at 5:31pm.

Certification that the minutes have been approved by the Historic Preservation Commission.

_____________________________________________
Rich Schroeder, Deputy Director of City Development

Meeting Minutes Prepared by: Laurie Bauman, City Development

Historic Preservation February 29, 2024






































	CURRENT_AGENDA
	022924draftminutes
	Item1-EmoryGrantHouse



